Everest COLLEGE

2003-2004 CATALOG

Dallas0503

Everest College 6060 North Central Expressway, Suite 101 Dallas, Texas 75206 214.234.4850 214.696.9818 (fax)

> A Branch of Western Business College 425 S.W. Washington Street Portland, Oregon 97204 (503) 222-3225

Approved and Regulated by the Texas Workforce Commission, Proprietary Schools Section, Austin, Texas. Accredited by the Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools. For complete information concerning accreditation, please refer to the Accreditation Section of this catalog.

2003-2004 Everest College Catalog

Publishing Date May, 2003

Copyright © 2003 by Corinthian Colleges, Inc., Santa Ana, California

Effective May 26, 2003 through December 31, 2004

The information contained in this catalog, supplements and addenda (if applicable) is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. Any addenda become an integral part of this catalog as of their effective date.

Kathryn K. Fox President, Everest College

Hathryn V. An

PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

I would like to welcome you to Everest College, a school which provides a friendly, small-campus atmosphere where our dedicated staff can take a personal interest in the progress of each student. This caring attitude, combined with progressive curricula affords our students a meaningful higher education experience, as well as effective preparation for a wide variety of careers.

Obtaining a post-secondary education gives our graduates a competitive edge in their career field and will make the difference when they are considered for professional advancement. Our programs are designed for employment in the State of Texas as well as other progressive areas throughout the country.

Our goal is to provide our students with quality instruction, a sense of professional responsibility, a desire for life-long learning, and the essential skills and abilities to qualify them for their chosen career.

Building on the traditions of Western Business College (founded in 1955), we have made every effort to fulfill our obligations to those who have entrusted their educational and career goals to Everest. We invite all interested parties, therefore, to visit our campus and review our diverse programs. Our experienced admissions officers will assist in the important process of identifying the program best suited for the candidate's special interests, talents, and goals.

Benjamin Franklin once said, 'If a man empties his purse into his head, no man can take it away from him. An investment in knowledge always pays the best interest.'

Kathryn K. Fox President

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE	ii
TABLE OF CONTENTS	iii
ABOUT EVEREST COLLEGE	1
Philosophy and Objectives	
General Information	
Rhodes Colleges, Inc	
Everest College	
Western Business College	
Accreditation and Approvals	
Statement of Ownership	
Board of Directors	
Officers	
Institutions owned by Rhodes Colleges, Inc.	
Administrative Staff	
Faculty	
•	
ADMISSIONS	
Admission Procedure	
Allied Health Programs	
Credit for Previous Education or Training	
Admission Policy	
Admission Inquiries	
PROGRAM OFFERINGS	6
Business Administration	6
Criminal Justice	7
Medical Assisting	8
COURSE OFFERINGS	O
Course Numbering System	
Course Descriptions	
•	
ACADEMIC INFORMATION	
Grading	
GPA and CGPA Calculations	
Grade Appeals	
Student Awards	
Graduation Requirements	
Satisfactory Academic Progress	
Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA) Requirements	
Rate of Progress Toward Completion Requirements	
Maximum Time in Which to Complete	
Graduation	
Academic Probation	
Academic Suspension	
Readmittance Following Suspension	
Academic Dismissal	
Appeals Procedures	
Application of Grades and Credits	
Proficiency Examination	
Continuation as a Non-Regular Student	19
Reinstatement As A Regular Student From Non-Regular Status:	19

Satisfactory Progress and Financial Aid	
Satisfactory Progress Requirements	19
Satisfactory Progress Tables	
Required Study Time	
Class Size	
Unit of Credit	
Academic	
Financial Aid	
Attendance Requirements	
Tardiness/Early Departure	
Reentry Policy	
Make-up Work	
Academic Advisement and Tutoring	
Course Changes; Add/Drop Period	
•	
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES	23
Health/Medical Care	23
Disabled Students	23
Transferability of Credits	23
Transcripts and Diplomas	
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act	
Statement of Non-Discrimination	
Dress Code	
Allied Health Programs	
Clothing and Personal Property	
Weather Emergencies	
Code of Conduct	
Sexual Harassment Policy	
Termination Procedures	
Student Complaint/Grievance Procedure	
Student Appeal Process	
Policy and Program Changes	
,	
FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Tuition and Fees	
Voluntary Prepayment Plan	
Individual Course Instruction	
Additional Fees and Expenses	
Cancellation/Refund Policy	30
Cancellations	30
Refunds	30
Financial Assistance	33
STUDENT SERVICES	36
Placement Assistance	
Student Activities	
Transportation Assistance	
Field Trips	
Special Lectures	
Drug and Alcohol Abuse Prevention	
Advising	36
SCHEDULES	37
Hours of Operation	
Academic Calendars	



ABOUT EVEREST COLLEGE

Philosophy and Objectives

The mission of Everest College is to provide quality job-relevant career training designed to prepare men and women of all ages to enter, prosper in, and meet the needs of the employment community. The College believes that this preparation of students to participate in the working community is an important and vital service to society.

Specifically, our objectives are:

- 1. To provide career training for capable students without regard to age, race, sex, handicap, color, or creed
- 2. To serve the needs of the community by providing well-trained and specialized personnel for employment in productive positions
- 3. To prepare men and women for better opportunities in the business, medical, and criminal justice fields and to develop in them a sense of responsibility and loyalty to their employers
- 4. To maintain our faculty, equipment, and teaching methods in agreement with the highest standards as set forth by the State of Texas, the Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools, and the various associations of which we are a member
- 5. To help our graduates become socially competent members of their communities to the degree that each can appreciate and handle the many human relations problems that will be encountered
- 6. To provide placement assistance to all graduates throughout their careers.

General Information

Rhodes Colleges, Inc.

Everest College is owned by Rhodes Colleges, Inc. (RCi) which is headquartered in Santa Ana California. Information concerning RCi and its other colleges and universities may be found in this catalog under "Statement of Ownership." The entire college system is dedicated to the ideal that students should have the opportunity to reach their full potential. The College staff is concerned with and committed to developing in all students the quest for knowledge and skills necessary for successful, life-long learning in their fields.

Everest College

Everest College is conveniently located on the east frontage road of North Central Expressway in the City of Dallas Texas. The attractive facility includes computer and medical assisting laboratories, lecture rooms, library, student lounge, and administrative areas. This institution, the facilities it occupies and the equipment it uses comply with all federal, state and local ordinances and regulations, including those related to fire safety, building safety and health.

The modern air-conditioned facility is designed for training students for the working world. The facility has over 22,000 square feet containing 13 classrooms, administrative offices, student lounge, restrooms and a library containing computers and reference and reading materials related to the academic programs. Several classrooms are designed and equipped for laboratory instruction.

Everest Institute was opened in Dallas Texas in January, 2003. The name of the institution was changed to Everest College in April, 2003.

Western Business College

Everest College is a branch of Western Business College (WBC). Western Business College was established in 1955. During the years since 1955, the College has moved four times, each time into a larger and more modern facility, reflecting the successful growth of the College.

In 1957 Western Business College became the first college in Oregon to offer data processing employment training. Western Business College was also the first Oregon College to provide hands-on training in the classroom on its own computer equipment. Since its founding WBC has continuously updated its curriculum and facilities to meet successfully the ever-changing employment needs.

Western Business College was acquired in October 1996, by Rhodes Colleges, Inc., which owns colleges located throughout the United States.

In 1979 Western Business College established a new branch school in Vancouver, Washington, to meet the growing business training and employment needs of Southwest Washington. In July 1998 the campus moved into its new facility at its current location. A second branch campus, Everest College was opened in Dallas Texas in January, 2003.

Student Disability Services/Accommodations

Everest Institute has an institutional commitment to provide equal educational opportunities for qualified students with disabilities in accordance with state and federal laws and regulations, including the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. To provide equality of access for students with disabilities, Everest Institute will provide accommodations and auxiliary aids and services to the extent necessary to comply with state and federal laws. For each student, these accommodations and services will specifically address the functional limitations of the disability that adversely affect equal educational opportunity. Applicants or students who would like to request disability service/accommodations must make a request to the Campus President.

Accreditation and Approvals

Everest College is approved and regulated by the Texas Workforce Commission, Proprietary Schools Section, Austin, Texas.

Everest College has received degree granting authority from the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Austin, Texas.

Everest College is accredited as a branch of Western Business College in Portland Oregon by the Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools to award occupational associate's degrees. The Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools is listed as a nationally recognized accrediting agency by the United States Department of Education. Its accreditation of degree-granting institutions also is recognized by the Council for Higher Education Accreditation. The Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS) is located at 750 First Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20002; (202) 336-6780.

Accreditation assures students (1) that the College is recognized as a qualified institution of higher learning with approved programs of study which meet recognized academic standards; (2) that it employs a professional staff; (3) that it has adequate facilities and equipment; and (4) that it has stability and permanence in the educational community.

The College does not imply, promise, or guarantee that it will maintain its affiliation with any accrediting agency for the duration of the student's enrollment and expressly reserves the right to terminate any such affiliation upon one month's notice to students.

School approvals and memberships are displayed in the lobby. The School President can provide additional information.

Statement of Ownership

This campus is owned and operated by Rhodes Colleges, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Corinthian Colleges, Inc., a Delaware Corporation. Corporate offices are located at 6 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 400, Santa Ana, CA 92707; (714) 427-3000.

Board of Directors

David G. Moore Paul R. St. Pierre Dennis L. Devereux

Officers

David G. Moore Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Timothy Schutz President and Chief Operating Officer

Paul R. St. Pierre Executive Vice President, Marketing & Admissions

Dennis N. Beal Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Dennis L. Devereux Executive Vice President, Administrative Services and Assistant Secretary

Beth A. Wilson Executive Vice President, Operations

Nolan A. Miura Senior Vice President, Strategic Planning & Business Development and

Assistant Treasurer

Mary Barry Senior Vice President, Academic Affairs

Stan A. Mortensen Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Institutions owned by Rhodes Colleges, Inc.

COLLEGE LOCATION

Blair College Colorado Springs, CO
Duff's Business Institute Pittsburgh, PA

Everest College Phoenix, AZ

Everest College Rancho Cucamonga, CA

Everest College Dallas, TX
Everest College Arlington, TX
Las Vegas College Las Vegas, NV
Mountain West College Salt Lake City, UT
Parks College Arlington, VA

Parks College Aurora, CO
Parks College Thornton, CO
Rochester Business Institute Rochester, NY
Springfield College Springfield, MO
Western Business College Portland, OR

Western Business College Vancouver, WA Florida Metropolitan University - Brandon Tampa, FL

Florida Metropolitan University - Brandon

Florida Metropolitan University - Fort Lauderdale
Florida Metropolitan University - Jacksonville
Florida Metropolitan University - Lakeland
Florida Metropolitan University - Melbourne
Florida Metropolitan University - North Orlando
Florida Metropolitan University - Pinellas

Florida Metropolitan University - South Orlando Orlando, FL
Florida Metropolitan University - Tampa Tampa, FL

Administrative Staff

Name Position Degrees Earned

Kathryn K. Fox President M.B.A., Memorial University of New Foundland

Kathleen C. Marino Academic Dean M.A., Western Michigan University

Jae Lee Director of Admissions B.B.A., Cameron University

Kenneth E. Evans Finance Director B.A., Prairie View A&M University

Open Director of Graduate Services

Faculty

Everest College faculty members are selected for their academic qualifications and working backgrounds, represent many years of practical experience, and are qualified to provide job-relevant training. An additional characteristic required of Everest College faculty is a genuine interest in assisting students to achieve their career goals. The College faculty is listed below.

Name Discipline Degrees Earned

Ruth M. Rinehart General Education/Business M.S., Amberton University
Allen Dale Moon General Education M.S.A., University of North

Allen Dale Moon General Education M.S.A., University of North Carolina Lynn Ann Lessere Medical B.S.N., Oklahoma University

D. Jane Huston Medical B.S.N., Oklahoma University

M.S.N., Baylor University

ADMISSIONS

Admission Procedure

All applicants are required to complete a personal interview with an admissions representative. Parents and spouses are encouraged to attend. This gives applicants and their families an opportunity to see the School's equipment and facilities, and to meet the staff and faculty to ask questions relating to the campus and their curriculum career objectives. Personal interviews also enable school administrators to determine whether an applicant is acceptable for enrollment in the program.

Once an applicant has completed and submitted the Enrollment Agreement, the School reviews the information and informs the applicant of its decision. If an applicant is not accepted, all fees paid to the School are refunded.

The School follows an open enrollment system. Individuals may apply up to one year in advance of a scheduled class start. The following items must be completed at the time of application:

- Administration and evaluation of an applicable entrance examination;
- Enrollment Agreement (if applicant is under 18 years of age it must be signed by parent or guardian); and
- Financial aid forms (if applicant wishes to apply for financial aid).

Applicants will complete a standardized, nationally-normed test, the Career Programs Assessment Test (CPAt). Successful completion of the assessment examination is a prerequisite for admission. The minimum scaled score for admission is 120. Applicants who have completed one academic year of credits at another postsecondary institution (24 semester credits or 36 quarter credits with at least a 2.0 cumulative grade point average) will not be required to complete the test. Applicants who have completed the ACT with a score of at least 15 or the SAT with a score of at least 700 will not be required to complete the test.

The student's individual success or satisfaction is not guaranteed and is dependent upon the student's individual efforts, abilities, and application of himself/herself to the requirements of the college.

This school does not offer training in English as a Second Language.

Allied Health Programs

Students entering an allied health program must also complete a Health Notice prior to the start of the training program. Health Notice forms are provided by the School.

Credit for Previous Education or Training

The Education Department will evaluate previous education and training that may be applicable to an educational program. If the education and/or training meet the standards for transfer of credit, the program may be shortened and the tuition reduced accordingly. Students who request credit for previous education and training are required to provide the School with an official transcript from the educational institution providing the training.

Admission Policy

Graduation from high school or its equivalent is a prerequisite for admission. Students enrolling at Everest College must furnish proof by providing the School with the diploma, official transcript or GED certificate, a copy of which will be placed in the student file. Those students may request a form supplied by the College for requesting transcripts or equivalency documentation.

Admission Inquiries

Inquiries concerning admission should be made by calling or writing the College.

PROGRAM OFFERINGS

Business Administration Associate of Applied Science – 96 Credits

Graduates of this program will find many careers open to them. The core of business courses provides a thorough study of the structure, function, and procedures of standard business operations. The Business Administration program prepares the student for a supervisory position, which may lead to office or departmental management.

COURSE	COURSE COURSE CLOCK HOURS				S	CREDIT
NUMBER			Lab	Ext	Tot	HOURS
COLLEGE C						
APA 2111	Principles of Accounting I	40	0	0	40	4
APA 2121	Principles of Accounting II	40	0	0	40	4
APA 2161	Introduction to Cost/Managerial Accounting	40	0	0	40	4
ACG 2021	Introduction to Corporate Accounting	40	0	0	40	4
BUL 2100	Applied Business Law	40	0	0	40	4
CGS 2071	Spreadsheets	30	20	0	50	4
CGS 2110	Computer Applications	30	20	0	50	4
OFT 1141	Keyboarding	0	40	0	40	2
	Total College Core Requirements				340	30
MAJOR COI	RE REQUIREMENTS					
FIN 1103	Introduction to Finance	40	0	0	40	4
MAN 1030	Introduction to Business Enterprise	40	0	0	40	4
MAN 2021	Principles of Management	40	0	0	40	4
MAN 2142	Introduction to International Management	40	0	0	40	4
MAN 2300	Introduction to Human Resources	40	0	0	40	4
MAN 2800	Small Business Management	40	0	0	40	4
MNT 2946	Externship in Management I	20	0	120	140	6
MAR 1011	Introduction to Marketing	40	0	0	40	4
MAR 2323	Advertising	40	0	0	40	4
MAR 2500	Customer Relations and Servicing	40	0	0	40	4
	Total Major Core Requirements				500	42
GENERAL E	DUCATION REQUIREMENTS					
ENC 1108	Composition 1	40	0	0	40	4
ENC 1109	Composition 11	40	0	0	40	4
MAC 2104	College Algebra	40	0	0	40	4
PHI 2100	Critical Thinking		0	0	40	4
PSY 2015	General Psychology		0	0	40	4
SPC 2016			0	0	40	4
	Total General Education Requirements					
HOURS REQ	UIRED FOR GRADUATION				1080	96

Criminal Justice Associate of Applied Science – 96 Credits

The Criminal Justice program provides a broad understanding of the criminal justice system and prepares graduates for entry-level career opportunities in corrections, immigration, law enforcement, and/or security. This is not a training program for law enforcement officers.

COURSE	COURSE	CLOCK HOURS						
NUMBER	TITLE	Lec Lab Ext						
COLLEGE CO	ORE REQUIREMENTS							
BUL 2100	Applied Business Law	40	0	0	40	4		
CGS 2110	Computer Applications	30	20	0	50	4		
MAN 1030	Introduction to Business Enterprise	40	0	0	40	4		
MAN 2021	Principles of Management	40	0	0	40	4		
MAR 2500	Customer Relations and Servicing	40	0	0	40	4		
OFT 1141	Keyboarding	0	40	0	40	2		
	Total College Core Requirements				250	22		
MAJOR COR	E REQUIREMENTS							
CCJ 1011	Criminology	40	0	0	40	4		
CCJ 1024	Introduction to Criminal Justice	40	0	0	40	4		
CCJ 2233	Criminal Evidence	40	0	0	40	4		
CCJ 2234	Criminal Procedure	40	0	0	40	4		
CCJ 2238	Criminal Investigation and Police		0	0		4		
	Procedures	40			40			
CCJ 2252	Constitutional Law for the Criminal Justice		0	0		4		
	Pro	40			40			
CCJ 2306	Introduction to Corrections	40	0	0	40	4		
CCJ 2358	Criminal Justice Report Writing	40	0	0	40	4		
CCJ 2501	Juvenile Delinquency	40	0	0	40	4		
CJT2940	Criminal Justice Externship	20	0	120	140	6		
CCJ 2943	Current Issues in Criminal Justice	40	0	0	40	4		
PLA 1023	Legal Ethics and Social Responsibility	40	0	0	40	4		
	Total Major Core Requirements				580	50		
GENERAL EI	DUCATION REQUIREMENTS							
ENC 1108	Composition 1	40	0	0	40	4		
ENC 1109	Composition 11	40	0	0	40	4		
MAC 2104	College Algebra	40	0	0	40	4		
PHI 2100	Critical Thinking	40	0	0	40	4		
PSY 2015	General Psychology	40	0	0	40	4		
SPC 2016	Oral Communications	40	0	0	40	4		
Total General Education Requirements						24		
HOURS REQUIRED FOR GRADUATION 1070								

Medical Assisting

Associate of Applied Science – 97 Credits

The Medical Assisting program is designed to bridge the gap between the traditional nurse in the physician's office and the medical secretary. Medical Assistants are trained to perform both "front office" activities (such as scheduling, bookkeeping, and customer service) and "back office" responsibilities (including vital signs and providing assistance to the physician). The degree prepares the graduate to be an entry-level paraprofessional in medical offices, clinics, and associated medical facilities.

COURSE	COURSE	CLOCK HOURS			5	CREDIT
NUMBER	MBER TITLE			Ext	Tot	HOURS
COLLEGE CORE REQUIREMENTS						
CGS 2110	Computer Applications	30	20	0	50	4
MAR 2500	Customer Relations and Servicing	40	0	0	40	4
OFT 1141	Keyboarding	0	40	0	40	2
	Total College Core Requirements				130	10
*	RE REQUIREMENTS	40	0	0	40	
APB 1120	Anatomy and Pathophysiology I	40	0	0	40	4
APB 1130	Anatomy and Pathophysiology II	40	0	0	40	4
APB 1150	Anatomy and Pathophysiology III	40	0	0	40	4
MEA 1210	Basic Clinical Procedures	40	0	0	40	4
MEA 1239	Medical Terminology	40	0	0	4 0	4
MEA 1385	Medical Law and Ethics	20	0	0	20	2
MEA 1500	Exams and Specialty Procedures	40	0	0	40	4
MEA 1695	Therapeutic Communications	20	0	0	20	2
MEA 2244	Pharmacology	40	0	0	40	4
MEA 2325	Medical Computer Applications	40	0	0	40	2
MEA 2350	Medical Office Procedures	30	20	0	50	4
MEA 2602	Medical Finance and Insurance	30	20	0	50	4
MEA 2712	Diagnostic Procedures	40	0	0	40	4
MEA 2801	Professional Procedures	20	0	0	20	2
MET 2802	Medical Externship	20	0	160	180	7
MLS 2328	Basic Clinical Procedures (lab)	0	40	0	40	2
MLS 2329	Exams and Specialty Procedures (lab)	0	40	0	40	2
MLS 2700	Pharmacology (lab)	0	40	0	40	2
MLS 2750	Diagnostic Procedures (lab)	0	40	0	40	2
	Total Major Core Requirements				<i>860</i>	63
CENEDAL E	DUCATION DECLUDEMENTS					
	DUCATION REQUIREMENTS	10	0	0	10	4
ENC 1108	Composition 1	40	0	0	40	4
ENC 1109	Composition 11	40	0	0	40	4
MAC 2104	College Algebra	40	0	0	40	4
PHI 2100	Critical Thinking	40	0	0	40	4
PSY 2015	General Psychology	40	0	0	40	4
SPC 2016	Oral Communications	40	0	0	40 240	4
Total General Education Requirements						24
HOURS REQ	QUIRED FOR GRADUATION				1230	97

COURSE OFFERINGS

Course Numbering System

This institution uses the following course numbering system:

• Lower division (first and second year) courses

Students enrolled in Associate of Applied Science Degree programs take courses in the lower division. The letters that must accompany the numbering system normally refer to the course subject matter, such as MAN = management and CIS= computer information systems. The numbers that follow the course prefix increase in sequence to indicate a more in-depth and complex level of the particular subject area.

Course Descriptions

ACG 2021 Introduction to Corporate Accounting
APA 2111 Principles of Accounting I
APA 2121 Principles of Accounting II
APA 2161 Introductory Cost/Managerial Accounting
APB 1120 Anatomy and Pathophysiology of the Integumentary, Urinary, and Digestive Systems and Nutrition
APB 1130 Anatomy and Pathophysiology of the Cardiovascular, Lymphatic, Respiratory, and Reproductive Systems
APB 1150 Anatomy and Pathophysiology of the Nervous, Endocrine, Skeletal, and Muscular Systems

BUL 2100 Applied Business Law
sole proprietorship, partnerships and corporations are discussed. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000
CCJ 1011 Criminology
behavior, and the response of the criminal justice system. Prerequisite: CCJ 1024. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000
CCJ 1024 Introduction to Criminal Justice
CCJ 2233 Criminal Evidence
CCJ 2234 Criminal Procedures
CCJ 2238 Criminal Investigation and Police Procedures
CCJ 2252 Constitutional Law for the Criminal Justice Professional4.0 Quarter Credit Hours This course examines the United State's Constitution and its implication for criminal justice system policies and practices. Prerequisite: CCJ 1024. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000
CCJ 2306 Introduction to Corrections
CCJ 2358 Criminal Justice Report Writing
CCJ 2501 Juvenile Delinquency

This course provides students with the opportunity to directly apply the knowledge and skills learned in the program by working in a criminal justice agency or other suitable location for 120 hours. The lecture portion of the course will assist students with personal and professional development for successful employment with a concentration on developing a positive self-image, assessing competitiveness strengths, career expectations, learning job search techniques, in addition to written skills and current resume preparation. Prerequisites: Students must be in good standing as stated in the Standards of Satisfactory Academic Progress and be in the last 24 credits of their program and/or have approval of the Department Chair. Lec. Hrs. 020 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 120 CCJ 2943 Current Issues in Criminal Justice4.0 Quarter Credit Hours This course presents an analysis of significant issues confronting modern day criminal justice practitioners. Critical concepts concerning law enforcement, the courts, corrections and juvenile justice will be addressed. Prerequisite: CCJ 1024. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000 From instructor lecture and demonstration using popular spreadsheet software, students, through return demonstration will learn basic and intermediate spreadsheeting skills with hands-on training on the microcomputer. Students will learn menu operations, terminology, and how to computerize standard business forms. Lec. Hrs. 030 Lab Hrs. 020 Other Hrs. 000 This course introduces the essential concepts necessary to make effective use of the computer. Students achieve an understanding of what a computer can do, how it works, and how it can be used to create documents using word processing and spreadsheet applications for personal and business use. Lec. Hrs. 030 Lab Hrs. 020 Other Hrs. 000 This course provides instruction and practice in expository writing and emphasizes grammatical and mechanical accuracy and proper essay form. Emphasis is placed on clarity, logical organization, unity, and coherence of central idea and supporting material. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000 This course builds on the foundation of the written communication skills developed in Composition I. It further develops the students' skills in composing essays and other written communication, including the documented research paper. Prerequisite: ENCP 1106. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000 This course is a survey of the financial considerations encountered during life, including purchases, credit, banking, taxes, insurance, investments, retirement and estate planning. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000 Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000. This course addresses the algebra of linear and quadratic equations, graphing, functions, inequalities, rational expressions, radicals, and system of equations. The course emphasizes critical thinking and problem-solving skills. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000. MAN 1030 Introduction to Business Enterprise4.0 Quarter Credit Hours This course is an introduction to the terminology, functions, and procedures related to the organization and operation of a business enterprise as an institution in an economic society. Particular emphasis is given to accounting, ownership, human resources, marketing, and managerial functions within the business enterprise. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000 The course covers an analysis of fundamental management principles integrated with concepts of the behavioral sciences. Management processes, resources, and organizational structure are introduced. Lec. Hrs. 040 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 000

MAN 2142 Introduction to International Management
MAN 2300 Introduction to Human Resources
MAN 2800 Small Business Management
MNT 2946 Externship in Management I
As part of the preparation for a career in management, the sophomore student is permitted to serve an externship of 120 hours in management functions of financial, business, and industrial organizations or government agencies acceptable to the University. The lecture portion of the course will assist students with personal and professional development for successful employment with a concentration on developing a positive self-image, assessing competitiveness strengths, career expectations, learning job
search techniques, in addition to written skills and current resume preparation. Arrangements for the externship training provide for assignment of duties, hours of employment, and working conditions satisfactory to the student, the Academic Advisor, and the employer. Prerequisites: Students must be in good standing as stated in the Standards of Satisfactory Academic Progress and be in the last 24 credits of their program and/or have approval of the Department Chair. Lec. Hrs. 020 Lab Hrs. 000 Other Hrs. 120
MAR 1011 Introduction to Marketing
MAR 2323 Advertising
MAR 2500 Customer Relations and Servicing
MEA 1210 Basic Clinical Procedures
MEA 1239 Medical Terminology
MEA 1385 Medical Law and Ethics

MLS 2328 Basic Clinical Procedures Lab
MLS 2329 Exams and Specialty Procedures Lab
<i>MLS 2700 Pharmacology Lab</i>
MLS 2750 Diagnostic Procedures Lab
OFT 1141 Keyboarding
PHI 2100 Critical Thinking
PLA 1023 Legal Ethics and Social Responsibility
PSY 2015 General Psychology
SPC 2016 Oral Communications

ACADEMIC INFORMATION

Grading

Final grades are reported at the completion of each grading term and are provided to each student. If mailed, they are sent to the student's home address.

The following grading system is used:

GRADE	EVALUATION	QUALITY POINTS					
		PER QTR HOUR					
A	Excellent	4					
В	Good	3					
С	Average	2					
D	Below Average	1					
F	Failed to Meet Course Objectives	0					
I	Incomplete	0					
W	Withdrawal used through week nine and not calculated in the CGPA	Not Calculated					
WD	Withdrawal during drop/add period. This grade indicates the course will not be calculated for purposes of determining rate of progress	Not Calculated					
	(SAP).						
WF	Withdrawal and failing the class. To be used after week nine. This grade <i>is</i> calculated in the CGPA.	0					
WM	Withdrawal after week nine with documented mitigating	Not Calculated					
	circumstances placed in the student's file and not counted in the						
	CGPA.						
WZ	Withdrawal for those students called to immediate active military	Not Calculated					
	duty. This grade indicates that the course will not be calculated for						
	purposes of determining rate of progress.						
T	Transfer Credit	Not Calculated					
PE	Passed by Proficiency Challenge Exam	Not Calculated					
PF	Preparatory Class Failed (Preparatory courses only) This grade	Not Calculated					
	indicates the course will not be calculated for purposes of determining						
	rate of progress (SAP).						
PP	Preparatory Class Passed (Preparatory courses only) This grade	Not Calculated					
	indicates the course will not be calculated for purposes of determining						
	rate of progress (SAP).						
Course Rep	Course Repeat Codes						
1	Student must Repeat This Class						
R	Student in the Process of Repeating This Class						
2	Course Repeated - Original Grade No Longer Calculated in CGPA						

GPA and **CGPA** Calculations

The grade point average (GPA) for each term and cumulative grade point average (CGPA) are calculated on residence courses taken at the college. The GPA for each term is calculated by dividing the quality points earned that term by the total cumulative credits attempted for the GPA. The CGPA is calculated by dividing the total cumulative quality points earned by the total cumulative credits attempted for the GPA.

The number of quality points awarded for each course is determined by multiplying the points listed for each letter grade by the number of credits of the course. For example, a grade of A in a four-credit course earns 4 (credits) X 4.0 (quality points) for a total of 16.0 quality points and a grade of C in a three-credit course earns 3 (credits) X 2.0 (quality points) for a total of 6.0 quality points.

Grade Appeals

A student who wishes to appeal a grade should immediately consult with the instructor involved in the course. If dissatisfaction remains, the student should meet with the Academic Dean. Further appeals must be through the Grievance Policy.

Student Awards

Students who achieve a GPA of 3.5 to 4.0 are placed on the Honor Roll at the end of each twelve-week term.

Students who have achieved a CGPA of 3.5 to 4.0 receive their diplomas/degrees With Honors upon graduation.

Graduation Requirements

To be eligible for graduation, students must:

- 1. complete the required number of credits for their program of study with passing grades in all required courses,
- 2. earn a minimum of a 2.0 (C) cumulative grade point average (CGPA),
- 3. complete all externship requirements, and
- 4. successfully complete the Texas Student Assessment Program (TASP) test.

After the successful completion of the aforementioned graduation requirements, the graduate is eligible to receive an Associate of Applied Science degree based upon the student's program of study.

Satisfactory Academic Progress

Students must maintain satisfactory academic progress in order to remain eligible to continue as regularly enrolled students of the College. Additionally, satisfactory academic progress must be maintained in order to remain eligible to continue receiving federal financial assistance. Satisfactory academic progress is determined by measuring the student's Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA) and the student's Rate of Progress toward completion of the academic program. These are outlined below.

Cumulative Grade Point Average (CGPA) Requirements

Students must meet specific cumulative grade point average requirements at specific points during their enrollment in order to be considered to be making satisfactory academic progress. These requirements are noted in the tables below, along with Rate of Progress requirements. These will be reviewed at the end of each academic quarter, after grades have been posted, to determine if the student's CGPA is in compliance.

Rate of Progress Toward Completion Requirements

In addition to the CGPA requirements, a student must successfully complete a certain percentage of the credits attempted to be considered to be making satisfactory academic progress. Credits attempted are defined as those credits for which students are enrolled at the end of the add/drop period of an academic term. These percentage requirements are noted in the tables below, along with CGPA requirements. As with the determination of CGPA, the percentage completion requirements will be reviewed at the end of each academic quarter, after grades have been posted, to determine if the student is progressing satisfactorily.

Maximum Time in Which to Complete

A student is not allowed more than 1.5 times, or 150% of, the standard length of the program in which to complete the requirements for graduation. This will be measured by limiting students to attempting 1.5 times, or 150% of, the number of credits in their program of study. The requirements for rate of progress are to assure that students are progressing at a rate at which they will be able to complete their programs within the maximum time frame. The maximum allowable attempted credits are noted in each of the following tables.

Graduation

In order to graduate, a student must have earned a minimum of a 2.0 CGPA and must have successfully completed all required credits within the maximum timeframe that may be attempted. These graduation requirements, along with any other specific requirements, are also outlined under the graduation requirements section in the College catalog.

Academic Probation

At the end of the quarter, after grades have been posted, each student's cumulative grade point average (CGPA) and rate of progress is reviewed to determine whether the student is meeting the requirements stated below. Students will be placed on academic probation when the CGPA or the rate of progress does not meet the requirements detailed below. The student will remain on academic probation as long as his or her CGPA or rate of progress remains in the probation ranges specified. When both the CGPA and rate of progress are above the probation ranges specified, the student is removed from probation. During the period of academic probation students are considered to be making satisfactory progress both for academic eligibility and financial aid eligibility.

Students on probation must participate in academic advising as deemed necessary by the College as a condition of their probation. In addition, students whose probation status extends over multiple academic terms may be directed to participate in extra tutorial sessions or developmental classes. Students who fail to comply with these requirements are subject to suspension even though their CGPA or rate of progress may be above the suspension levels.

Academic Suspension

If the student's CGPA or rate of progress ever falls into the suspension ranges specified below, the student is considered not to be making satisfactory progress, is placed on academic suspension, and must be withdrawn from the College.

Readmittance Following Suspension

Students who have been suspended may apply for readmittance to the College after one academic term according to the readmission policy. Students readmitted at this point are considered to be on probation, but must bring their CGPA or rate of progress into the probation range by the end of the first academic term after being readmitted. If it is mathematically impossible for the student to improve into the probation range by the end of the first academic term after readmittance or if, in the judgment of the readmittance committee, it is highly improbable for the student to improve into the probation range, the student will not be readmitted.

Academic Dismissal

Students who have been readmitted following academic suspension who fail to improve their CGPA into the probation range by the end of the first academic term after readmittance will receive an academic dismissal and the student must be withdrawn from the College. Students who have been dismissed are not eligible for readmittance to the College.

Appeals Procedures

Students who have been determined not to be making satisfactory academic progress and who feel that there are mitigating or extenuating circumstances that led to the failure to maintain satisfactory progress and believe they have resolved those circumstances may appeal by requesting in writing a review of their satisfactory academic progress. Examples of such mitigating circumstances include injury or illness to the student or death of an immediate family member. Such review shall be conducted by the Academic Dean and/or the Campus President or an appeal committee appointed by the campus President. Should the appeal be denied and the student suspended, the student is eligible for readmittance, as outlined above. Should the appeal be granted, the student will not be required to sit out at least one academic term and will be continued on probation and will receive one additional academic term in which to regain satisfactory progress. Should the student still fail to meet the satisfactory academic progress requirements, the student will receive academic dismissal, as outlined above.

Application of Grades and Credits

Transfer credits are not included in the calculation of CGPA, but are included in the "Total Number of Credits Attempted" (see charts) in order to determine the required levels for CGPA and rate of progress. Transfer credits are included as credits attempted and successfully completed in calculating the rate of progress.

A grade for a repeated course replaces the original grade in the calculation of CGPA; however, the original course credits remain included in the "Total Number of Credits Attempted" (in the charts below) in order to determine the required progress level. The original credits are considered as not successfully completed.

For calculating rate of progress, grades of F (failure), W (withdrawn), WF (withdrawn), WM (withdrawn mitigating circumstances), WZ (withdrawal due to called to Active Military Duty) are counted as hours attempted, but are not counted as hours successfully completed. A grade of I (incomplete) will also be counted as hours attempted, but not as hours successfully completed; however, when the "I" is replaced with a letter grade, the GPA and satisfactory progress determination will be recalculated based on that letter grade and the credits earned.

The student has 14 calendar days following the end of the academic term to complete the coursework, at which point the final grade is determined and replaces the incomplete grade. A WD (withdrawal during add/drop) is not counted as hours attempted nor is it calculated in the CGPA.

Proficiency Examination

Students may attempt to challenge the requirement to certain selected courses by demonstrating a proficiency level based on special qualifications, skills or knowledge obtained through work or other experience that is sufficient to warrant the granting of academic credit for a course through a Proficiency Examination. Students who wish to challenge a course must arrange a testing date with the Academic Dean or Department Chair. Proficiency Examinations are not available for courses in which the student has previously been or is currently enrolled after the add/drop period. Students are afforded one Proficiency Examination attempt per course.

Students should contact the Academic Office to discuss the Proficiency Examination process. All requests for Proficiency Examinations must be approved by the appropriate Department Chair or the Academic Dean. Administrative fees for Proficiency Examinations are noted in the tuition and fees schedule. Credits earned as a result of successful completion of Proficiency Examinations in conjunction with Directed Study and Experiential Learning Evaluation/Portfolio may be used to satisfy up to 50% of the credits required for program completion. Successful completion of a Proficiency Examination with a grade of "C" will be posted to the academic transcript as a PE (see Tuition & Fee Schedule).

Continuation as a Non-Regular Student

Students who have been suspended or dismissed due to failure to maintain satisfactory academic progress may be allowed to continue as students of the College under the following conditions:

- The student is allowed to continue in a Non-Regular Student status for a period of time not greater than 25% of the normal program length.
- The student is not eligible for student financial aid.
- The student is obligated to pay tuition, according to the established tuition rate per credit hour, for any courses in which the student is enrolled.
- During the time as a non-regular student, the student is to be working toward coming into compliance with the standards of satisfactory progress, or at the least, close enough to qualify for readmittance as noted (i.e., can come into compliance within the time frame specified below). If, by the end of the maximum period allowed on non-regular status the student has not improved his/her academic standing to the probation range, he/she will be dismissed.

Reinstatement As A Regular Student From Non-Regular Status:

Students who have attempted the maximum number of credits allowed under their program, but have not earned all of the credits necessary to complete their program may be allowed to enter non-regular status; however, they will never be eligible for readmittance to regular status in the program from which they were suspended or dismissed, but may continue on non-regular status up to the maximum period allowed for the purposes of completing all required credits. Further, these students who have entered non-regular status are not eligible for graduation (cannot receive a degree or diploma) from their programs, but can receive a certificate for the credits they successfully completed.

Satisfactory Progress and Financial Aid

Students must meet the standards of satisfactory academic progress in order to remain eligible to continue receiving financial assistance as well as to remain eligible to continue as a student of the College.

The financial aid office will provide details to all eligible recipients. Students should read these standards carefully and refer any questions to academic or financial aid personnel. Satisfactory academic progress for purposes of determining continuing federal financial assistance is determined by applying the CGPA requirements, rate of progression requirements, maximum completion time restrictions, probation provisions, suspension and dismissal procedures, and appeals procedures as outlined in the satisfactory academic progress section of the College catalog.

Students on academic probation are considered to be maintaining satisfactory academic progress and are eligible to continue receiving federal financial assistance. Students who have been academically suspended or dismissed are no longer active students of the College and are ineligible for financial aid. Reinstatement of financial aid eligibility will occur only after readmittance following suspension or in the event the student's appeal results in readmittance.

Satisfactory Progress Requirements

In addition to the standards described below, students are evaluated at 25% of the maximum program length and must have a minimum CGPA of 1.25 and a rate of progress of 55% or will be placed on probation. Students are also evaluated at 50% of the maximum program length and must have a minimum CGPA of 1.5 and rate of progress of 60% or they will face academic suspension and must be withdrawn from the college. If an evaluation point occurs during a quarter, the evaluation will be conducted at the end of the prior quarter.

Satisfactory Progress Tables

97 Quarter Credit Hours

The total credits that may be attempted (maximum program length) is 145 (150% of 97).

		<u> </u>	0 / \	
TOTAL	PROBATION	SUSPENSION	PROBATION IF	SUSPENSION IF
CREDITS	IF CGPA	IF CGPA	RATE OF PROGRESS	RATE OF PROGRESS
ATTEMPTED	IS BELOW	IS BELOW	IS BELOW	IS BELOW
1 - 16	2.00	N/A	66%	N/A
17 - 32	2.00	1.00	66%	N/A
33 - 48	2.00	1.20	66%	50%
49 - 60	2.00	1.30	66%	60%
61 - 72	2.00	1.50	66%	65%
73 - 95	2.00	1.75	N/A	66%
96 - 145	N/A	2.00	N/A	66%

96 Quarter Credit Hours

The total credits that may be attempted (maximum program length) is 144 (150% of 96).

_			\ 1 -0	- 0 / - (,
Ī	TOTAL	PROBATION	SUSPENSION	PROBATION IF	SUSPENSION IF
	CREDITS	IF CGPA	IF CGPA	RATE OF PROGRESS	RATE OF PROGRESS
	ATTEMPTED	IS BELOW	IS BELOW	IS BELOW	IS BELOW
Ī	1 - 16	2.00	N/A	66%	N/A
	17 - 32	2.00	1.00	66%	N/A
	33 - 48	2.00	1.20	66%	50%
	49 - 60	2.00	1.30	66%	60%
	61 - 72	2.00	1.50	66%	65%
	73 - 95	2.00	1.75	N/A	66%
	96 - 144	N/A	2.00	N/A	66%

Required Study Time

In order to complete the required class assignments, students are expected to spend outside time studying. The amount of time will vary according to individual student abilities. Students are responsible for reading all study materials issued by their instructors and must turn in assignments at the designated time.

Class Size

To provide meaningful instruction and training, classes are limited in size. Standard lecture classes average 30 students. The maximum class size for most lecture classes is 30 students.

Typical laboratory classes average 20 students. The maximum class size for laboratories is 30 students.

Unit of Credit

Academic

A clock hour is a class period of 50 to 60 minutes of instruction. Clock hours are converted into credit hours to allow for comparison with other postsecondary schools. Students earn one quarter credit hour for each 10 clock hours of lecture, 20 hours of laboratory or 30 hours of externship.

Financial Aid

Students may be awarded financial assistance, if eligible, based on the number of financial aid credit hours they will earn. For certain educational programs, the U.S. Department of Education requires that students earn one financial aid credit hour for each 20 contact hours of instruction.

This requirement does not apply to all programs. Students should contact the Financial Aid Department for information regarding their program of study.

Attendance Requirements

Regular attendance and punctuality will help students develop good habits necessary for successful careers. Satisfactory attendance is established when students are present in the assigned classroom for the scheduled amount of time.

Absences may include tardiness or early departures. (See Tardiness/Early Departure policy.) Students who are not in attendance for at least 51 percent of the scheduled class time will be considered absent from that course for the day. For students taking Distance Education courses, the student is considered to be in attendance in that course for the week if they "sign-on" to their course(s) at least once during that week. Absences during Add/Drop week, prior to registration in the class, will not count toward the attendance requirements of this section.

Students will be terminated if, prior to their last quarter, the student is absent in excess of 10 consecutive school days or 20% of the total clock hours in the program. Students who exceed 20% of the total program hours will be dropped from school and will be ineligible to appeal to reenter school until after they have been out of school for one grading period. Students are not permitted to make up absences for the classroom-training portion of their program. However, students must make up absences that occur during the externship to ensure that the required extern hours are completed prior to graduation.

Students who miss more than 20% of their scheduled classroom hours during any term (quarter) will be placed on attendance probation for the following term. Students who miss more than 20 percent of the scheduled classroom hours during any term in which they are on attendance probation will be advised that they are terminated from the program. If terminated, students must successfully appeal their termination within three school days in order to continue their training without interruption. (See Student Appeal Policy.) If their termination is not successfully appealed, they will remain dropped from the program.

Students are encouraged to schedule medical, dental or other personal appointments after school hours. If a student finds that he/she will be unavoidably absent, he/she should notify the School.

Tardiness/Early Departure

Students who are 15 minutes late to class or who leave class 15 minutes early on four occasions will accrue one hour of absence on their attendance record. Students who are not in attendance for at least 51 percent of the scheduled class time will be considered absent for the day.

Reentry Policy

Students must strive for perfect attendance. We understand that there are extenuating circumstances that may cause a student to violate the attendance policy. Upon a showing of good cause through the appeals process, a student may apply for reentry to the School.

Students who have been terminated for violating the attendance policy may apply for reentry to the School through the appeals process. (See Student Appeal Policy.) Students reentered after violating the attendance policy may not be absent more than 20 percent of the total of the remaining classroom hours. Normally, approval for reentry will be granted only once. However, in those instances where extenuating circumstances exist, a student may be allowed to reenter more than once with appropriate documentation and the approval of the School President.

Make-up Work

Students are required to make up all assignments and work missed as a result of absence. The instructor may assign additional outside make-up work to be completed for each absence. Arrangements to take any tests missed because of an absence must be made with the instructor and approved by the school administration.

Academic Advisement and Tutoring

Students' educational objectives, grades, attendance and conduct are reviewed on a regular basis. Students will be notified if their academic standing or conduct is unacceptable. Failure to improve academic standing or behavior may result in further action. Tutorial programs and academic advisement are provided for students who are experiencing difficulties with their class work. Students are encouraged to seek academic assistance through the Education Department.

Course Changes; Add/Drop Period

Course changes or withdrawals must be approved by the academic dean by Friday of the first week of the term.

Students who withdraw from individual courses during the add/drop period will receive WD for the courses dropped.

Students who withdraw from school during the add/drop period will receive a WD in all courses dropped.

Students who withdraw from individual courses or from school after the add/drop period through the ninth week of the term will receive a W in all courses dropped. Students who withdraw from individual courses or from school after the ninth week of the quarter will receive WF in all courses dropped.

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

Health/Medical Care

Students must take proper care of their health so that they can do their best in school. This means regular hours, plenty of sleep, sufficient exercise and nutritious food. Students who become seriously ill or contract a communicable disease should stay home and recover, but remember to notify the School immediately. All medical and dental appointments should be made after school hours.

The School will not be responsible for rendering any medical assistance but will refer students to the proper medical facility upon request.

Disabled Students

It is the policy of Everest College to provide accessibility and reasonable accommodations for persons defined as handicapped in section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Specifically, the College provides evaluation of individual needs, advisement, and appropriate support for academic programs of persons identified as handicapped.

Handicapped students are responsible for contacting the academic dean for an intake interview to assess their needs prior to the first term of enrollment at the College. Students are responsible for identifying themselves and their needs to each instructor no later than the first day of class each term and for notifying the academic dean if any problems arise concerning their academic program.

Faculty members are responsible for becoming familiar with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and for reasonably accommodating each identified handicapped student in each class on an individual basis.

Transferability of Credits

The School President's office provides information on schools that may accept this school's course credits toward their programs. However, this school does not guarantee transferability of credits to any other college, university or institution. It should not be assumed that any courses or programs described in this catalog can be transferred to another institution. Any decision on the comparability, appropriateness and applicability of credits and whether they may be accepted is the decision of the receiving institution.

Transcripts and Diplomas

All student academic records are retained, secured, and disposed of in accordance with local, state, and federal regulations. All student record information is maintained on the school computer system. Permanent records are kept in paper form, microfiche or microfilm. The School maintains complete records for each student that includes grades, attendance, prior education and training, and awards received.

Student academic transcripts, which include grades, are available upon written request by the student. Student records may only be released to the student or his/her designee as directed by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974.

Transcript and diploma requests must be made in writing to the Office of the Registrar. Official transcripts will be released to students who are current with their financial obligation (i.e. Tuition and fees due to the School are paid current per the student's financial agreement). Diplomas will be released to students who are current with their financial obligation upon completion of their school program.

Students are provided an official transcript free of charge upon completing graduation requirements as stated in the previous paragraph. There is a fee of \$5 for each additional official transcript requested. Normal processing time for transcript preparation is approximately three to five days.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords students certain rights with respect to their education records. They are:

- 1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days of the day the Institution receives a request for access. Students should submit to the School President written requests that identify the record(s) they wish to inspect. The Institution official will make arrangements for access and notify the student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. If the records are not maintained by the Institution official to whom the request was submitted, that official shall advise the student of the correct official to whom the request should be addressed.
- 2. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the student believes are inaccurate or misleading. Students may ask the Institution to amend a record that they believe is inaccurate or misleading. They should write the institution official responsible for the record, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed, and specify why it is inaccurate or misleading. If the Institution decides not to amend the record as requested by the student, the Institution will notify the student of the decision and advise the student of his or her right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the student when notified of the right to a hearing.
- 3. The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. One exception that permits disclosure without consent is disclosure to institution officials with legitimate educational interests. An institution official is a person employed by the Institution in an administrative, supervisory, academic or research, or support staff position (including law enforcement unit personnel and health staff); a person or company with whom the Institution has contracted (such as an attorney, auditor, or collection agent); a person serving on the Board of Trustees; or a student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another institution official in performing his or her tasks. An institution official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. Upon request, the Institution discloses education records without consent to officials of another institution in which a student seeks or intends to enroll.

Directory information is information that may be unconditionally released to third parties by the School without the consent of the student unless the student specifically requests that the information not be released. The School requires students to present such requests in writing within 10 days of the date of enrollment. Directory information includes the student's name, address(es), telephone number(s), birth date and place, program undertaken, dates of attendance and certificate or diploma awarded.

4. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the Institution to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office Department of Education 600 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202-4605

Additional FERPA information is available from the Institution's Business Office.

Statement of Non-Discrimination

Everest College does not discriminate on the basis of sex, age disability, race, creed or religion in its admission to or treatment in its programs and activities, including advertising, training, placement and employment. The College President is the coordinator of Title IX - the Educational Amendments Act of 1972, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in any education program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. All inquiries or complaints under the sex discrimination provisions of Title IX should be directed to the school president. The school president must act equitably and promptly to resolve complaints and should provide a response within seven working days. Students who feel that the complaint has not been adequately addressed should contact the Student Help Line, (800) 874-0255.

Dress Code

A clean, neat appearance will help students develop appropriate dress habits for new careers. Employers may visit the campus to interview students for jobs and to give guest lectures, so it is important that the student body convey a professional image at all times.

Dress and grooming should be appropriate for the area of study. Because a variety of business and medical equipment is used during training, certain items of clothing - such as shorts and open shoes - are not acceptable for obvious safety reasons.

Students may have limited funds, so wardrobes need not be expensive or extensive - simply in good taste. Women may wear skirts and blouses, dresses or slacks. For men, acceptable items include slacks, sports shirts, dress shirts, and coat and tie when required.

Students dressed inappropriately will not be admitted to school. Those who continually disregard the dress code will be warned and, if necessary, disciplinary action will be taken.

Allied Health Programs

Students enrolled in allied health programs are required to wear the standard medical uniform and shoes with a closed heel and toe as described in the school's dress code policy. Students should review the established dress and appearance guidelines for details. This information will be available upon enrollment.

Clothing and Personal Property

All personal property is the sole responsibility of the student. The School does not assume liability for any loss or damage. Clothing and other small items should be marked clearly with the student's name and address. Vehicles should always be locked to avoid theft.

Weather Emergencies

The School reserves the right to close during weather emergencies or other "acts of nature." Under these conditions, students will not be considered absent. Instructors will cover any missed material to ensure completion of the entire program.

Code of Conduct

Everest Institute maintains professional level standards for conduct and behavior for all students. The standards of conduct for students are patterned after those of professional employees in the workplace. Students are expected to observe campus policies and behave in a manner that is a credit to the campus and to themselves. Certain violations of the Student Conduct Code, as outlined in this policy, shall result in immediate dismissal. Other violations are subject to a progressive disciplinary action, where the student is advised and given every opportunity to change his or her behavior to meet the expectations of Everest Institute and to prepare for what the student might later expect to find in a professional level work environment. Everest Institutes maintains the right to discipline students found in violation of Everest Institute policies.

Students are subject to the Student Conduct Code while participating in any program externship, clinical rotation, or other Everest Institute-related activity.

Student Conduct Code

Students must show respect towards and be cooperative with Everest Institute faculty and staff during the performance of their duties, as well as show respect for fellow students and campus visitors.

Examples of conduct which may result in disciplinary action include, but are not limited to, behavior that is disruptive, intimidating, dishonest, or discourteous; and destruction, theft, or other misuse of Everest Institute property.

Violations that threaten the health and safety of campus employees, other students, or visitors shall result in immediate dismissal from the Everest Institute. Violations which warrant immediate dismissal include, but are not limited to: threatening the safety of others; possessing alcohol, drugs, dangerous weapons, or other foreign substances on campus; theft; vandalism or misuse of the Everest Institute or another's property; or harassment or intimidation of others. Students dismissed for the reasons outlined above will not be allowed back on campus property without express permission of the Campus President or a designated Everest Institute official

Student Conduct Code Violations/Formal Disciplinary Procedure

If the Everest Institute has reason to believe that a student has violated the Student Conduct Code, the Everest Institute shall conduct an investigation and follow up with the student in the appropriate manner.

Violations that threaten the health and safety of campus employees, other students, or visitors shall result in immediate dismissal from the Everest Institute.

Other Student Conduct violations shall be governed by a progressive disciplinary procedure. For isolated, minor Student Conduct Code violations, the school may decide to conduct academic advising and issue a verbal reminder of the Student Conduct Code, or to provide the student with written notice, as the Everest Institute deems appropriate. Everest Institute may also decide to suspend or place a student on probation for a specified period of time, pending a full investigation of Student Conduct Code violations or as a form of corrective action short of dismissal.

- First Offense A written warning. The student shall receive a letter which describes the specific examples of the student's misconduct and the consequences if further violations occur.
- Second Offense Student dismissal. Each student dismissed shall receive a dismissal letter from the campus, stating the reasons for dismissal and any applicable appeals procedures.
- Threats to Health/safety Immediate dismissal with dismissal letter

Appeals

Students dismissed for violations of the Student Conduct Code may appeal the dismissal by submitting a letter to the Campus President stating the reason the student should be allowed to return to school. The President's decision on the appeal shall be considered final.

Sexual Harassment Policy

The College will strive to provide and maintain an environment free of all forms of harassment. Sexual harassment is a violation of Title IV.

The following guidelines are issued which legally define sexual harassment as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

- Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment,
- Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual, or
- Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment.

The College will not tolerate sexual harassment. Behavior toward any employee or student by a member of the staff, faculty, or student body which constitutes unwelcome sexual advances, including comments of a sexual nature, or inappropriate conduct, including the display of derogatory drawings, cartoons, or posters, will be dealt with quickly and vigorously and will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination or dismissal.

Any student or employee who believes that he or she is a victim of sexual harassment should immediately notify the office of the College President or Academic Dean. The College President or Dean will conduct an investigation of all allegations. Information surrounding all complaints will be documented and kept strictly confidential.

Termination Procedures

Students may be terminated by the School for cause. Examples include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Violation of the School's attendance policy.
- Failure to maintain satisfactory academic progress.
- Violation of personal conduct standards.
- Inability to meet financial obligations to the School.

Students to be terminated are notified in writing and may appeal to the School President.

Student Complaint/Grievance Procedure

Persons seeking to resolve problems or complaints should first contact their instructor. Unresolved complaints should be made to the Education Director. Students who feel that the complaint has not been adequately addressed should contact the College President. Written responses will be given to the student within seven working days. If the problem remains unresolved, students may contact the Student Help Line at (800) 874-0255.

If you have followed the above guidelines and still feel that your concern has been improperly addressed, contact:

Texas Workforce Commission Proprietary Schools Section 101 East 15th Street Austin, TX 78778-0001

Schools accredited by the Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools must have a procedure and operational plan for handling student complaints. If a student feels that the school has not adequately addressed a complaint or concern, the student may consider contacting the Accrediting Council. Please direct all inquiries to:

Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools 750 First Street, N.E., Suite 980 Washington, DC 20002-4241 (202) 336-6780

Student Appeal Process

Students are required to adhere to all of the policies and procedures of the School. Students who have been terminated for violating school policy and procedures may seek reentry by following the appeals process.

Students whose training programs are terminated by the School will be informed of the right to appeal that decision. Students must initiate the process within three school days or as soon as reasonably practicable as determined by school administration. Students must initiate the process by submitting a written request for re-admittance to the School President. The written request must address the reason(s) for termination and make a substantial showing of good cause to justify readmission.

Students will not be entitled to appeal if they are terminated for exceeding the maximum program completion time due to the criteria of the Accrediting Commission.

Policy and Program Changes

The School catalog is current as of the time of printing. Everest Institue reserves the right to make changes in organizational structure, policy and procedures as circumstances dictate. Each campus reserves the right to make changes in equipment and materials and modify curriculum as it deems necessary. When size and curriculum permit, classes may be combined to provide meaningful instruction and training and contribute to the level of interaction among students. Students are expected to be familiar with the information presented in this school catalog.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Tuition and Fees

The tuition and fees listed below will be charged for each quarter (or mid-term quarter start) in attendance. The tuition and fees for subsequent quarters will remain unchanged unless there is a break in enrollment or a program change.

The minimum full-time course load is 12 credits per quarter. Non-credit bearing coursework, if any, will be charged at the same rate as credit bearing coursework but will be in addition to the total program cost. Textbook costs per quarter are dependent upon the classes for which the student is registered. All credits for which a student is registered are charged at the applicable rate, including any courses being repeated. Arrangements to cover the cost of tuition, books, and fees must be completed prior to registration each quarter.

The student's total tuition for a given quarter is determined by multiplying the number of credit hours for which the student is registered at the end of the add/drop period by the then current tuition rate for that number of credit hours.

PROGRAM	CREDITS	TUITION PER CREDIT HOUR	PROGRAM TUITION	ESTIMATED BOOKS AND EQUIPMENT
Business Administration	96	\$206	\$19,776	\$4,000
Criminal Justice	96	\$206	\$19,776	\$4,000
Medical Assisting	97	\$206	\$19,982	\$3,500

Tuition will be charged on a quarterly basis. A \$25 registration fee will be charged to all students each quarter. A non-refundable fee of \$20 (per credit hour) is assessed for each proficiency examination (cannot be paid from Title IV financial aid funds.) A \$100 fee will be charged for each online course in addition to tuition. Additional fees not included in the above costs may be assessed.

Arrangements for payment of tuition and book charges (if any) must be made in advance of the first day of classes for each term for which the student is enrolled. The College charges the student's tuition account for tuition at the beginning of each term for which the student is enrolled. At the beginning of each term, the College charges the student's book account for books issued for that term.

Everest College reserves the right to terminate a student's enrollment if the student fails to meet financial obligations. The College also reserves the right to withhold all official documents such as transcripts, grades, diplomas, and degrees until all charges have been paid.

Voluntary Prepayment Plan

The School provides a voluntary prepayment plan to students and their families to help reduce the balance due upon entry. Details are available upon request from the Financial Aid Office.

Individual Course Instruction

Students may enroll in selected courses from approved programs. Instruction cost will be calculated using the current pro-rata hourly tuition rate.

Additional Fees and Expenses

Charges for textbooks and equipment are separate from tuition. The institution does not charge for books and equipment until the student purchases and receives the items. Incidental supplies, such as paper and pencils, are to be furnished by students.

Cancellation/Refund Policy

This institution employs a fair and equitable refund policy that complies with federal, state, and accrediting guidelines for the return of unearned tuition and fees in the event of cancellation, termination or withdrawal.

Detailed below are the specific federal, state and institutional refund policies and procedures that will be used to ensure that the institution retains only funds that have been earned according to the applicable refund policy. In the event that a refund is required, these policies will ensure that any and all refunds are paid to the appropriate entity in a timely fashion.

Cancellations

When students enroll in a program of study, they reserve places that cannot be made available to other students. The Enrollment Agreement does not constitute a contract until it has been approved by an official of the School. If the agreement is not accepted by the School all monies will be refunded.

Students have the right to cancel the Enrollment Agreement at any time. Cancellation will occur when they give written notice of cancellation at the School address shown on the front page of the Enrollment Agreement. Notice of cancellation may be given by mail, hand delivery or telegram. The notice of cancellation, if sent by mail, is effective when deposited in the mail, properly addressed with postage prepaid. The written notice of cancellation need not take any particular form and, however expressed, is effective if it states that a student no longer wishes to be bound by the Enrollment Agreement. Students will not be penalized if they fail to cancel their enrollment in writing.

If the student cancels the enrollment agreement or contract within 72 hours (until midnight of the third day excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays) after the enrollment contract is signed by the prospective student, all monies paid will be refunded. If a student cancels more than 72 hours after executing the Enrollment Agreement and before the start of classes, the School will refund all monies paid. Students will not be charged tuition if they begin their training program and withdraw prior to midnight of the fifth business day following their first scheduled class session.

Students who withdraw as described above must return all training materials purchased within five business days from the date of withdrawal. They will be charged for materials that are not returned in good condition. Students enrolled in a program that requires them to purchase training materials will be subject to the School's textbook return policy. (See Textbook and Equipment Return/Refund Policy below)

Students who have not visited the School prior to enrollment may withdraw without penalty within five days (weekends and legal holidays excluded) following either the regularly scheduled orientation or a tour of the School and inspection of equipment. Students who are unable to complete their program of study due to the School's cancellation or discontinuance of the program will receive a refund of all monies paid. Students who enrolled as a result of any misrepresentation in advertising, promotional materials of the School, or representations by the owner or representatives of the School may cancel this enrollment agreement without penalty and receive a refund of all monies paid.

Refunds

This institution when certified by the U.S. Department of Education will be an eligible participant in the federal student financial aid (SFA) programs established under the Higher Education Act of 1965 (HEA), as amended.

To calculate refunds under the Federal Return of Title IV Funds policy, institutions must complete two separate calculations. First, the institution must determine how much of the tuition, fees and other institutional charges it is eligible to retain using either the state or institutional refund policy. Then,

using the Federal Return of Title IV Funds policy, the institution determines how much federal assistance the student has earned which can be applied to the institutional charges.

If the student received more SFA funds than he or she earned under the Federal Return of Title IV Funds policy, the institution, and in some cases the student, is required to return the unearned funds to the Federal Treasury. Any unpaid balance that remains after the Return of Title IV Funds policy has been applied to the state or institutional policy must be paid by the student to the institution.

Refund Policies

Any monies due an applicant or student will be refunded within 30 days of the date of cancellation, withdrawal, or termination. A withdrawal is considered to have occurred on the earlier of a) the date the student officially notifies the School of their intent to withdraw, or b) the point at which the student fails to meet the published attendance policies outlined in the school catalog. If a student received a loan for tuition, a refund will be made to the lender to reduce the student's loan debt. If the amount of refund exceeds the unpaid balance of the loan, the remainder of the monies will be applied to any student financial aid programs from which the student received funding. Any remaining balance of funds will then be returned to the student. The refund computation will be based on the last date of student attendance.

If students do not return following a leave of absence on the date indicated on the approved written request, refunds will be made within 30 days from the date the student was scheduled to have returned. For purposes of determining a refund, the last date of attendance is used when a student fails to return from an approved leave of absence.

In cases of prolonged illness or accident, death in the family, or other circumstances that make it impractical to complete the program, the School will make a settlement that is reasonable and fair to both parties.

Textbook and Equipment Return/Refund Policy

If the student obtains and returns unmarked textbooks, unworn uniforms or unused equipment within 30 days following the date of the student's cancellation, withdrawal or termination, the institution shall refund the charge for the textbooks, uniforms or equipment paid by the student. If the student fails to return unmarked textbooks, unworn uniforms or unused equipment within 30 days following the date of the student's cancellation, withdrawal or termination, the student will be liable for the documented textbook, uniform or equipment charges.

Federal Return of Title IV Funds Policy

All institutions participating in the SFA programs are required to use a statutory schedule to determine the amount of SFA funds the student had earned when he or she ceases to attend, which is based on the period of time the student was in attendance.

If a recipient of the SFA Program withdraws from the institution during a payment period or a period of enrollment in which the recipient began attendance, the School must calculate the amount of SFA program assistance the student did not earn, and those funds must be returned. Up through the 60% point in each payment period or period of enrollment, a pro-rata schedule is used to determine how much SFA Program funds the student has earned at the time of withdrawal. After the 60% point in the payment period or period of enrollment, a student has earned 100% of the SFA funds.

The percentage of the payment period or period of enrollment completed is determined by:

The percentage of the payment period or period of enrollment completed is the total number of calendar days* in the payment period or period of enrollment for which the assistance is awarded divided into the number of calendar days* completed in that period as of the last date of attendance.

*Scheduled breaks of at least five consecutive days are excluded from the total number of calendar days in a payment period or period of enrollment (denominator) and the number of calendar days completed in that period (numerator). Days in which a student was on an approved leave of absence are also excluded in the calendar days for the payment period or period of enrollment.

Return of Unearned SFA Program Funds

The institution must return the lesser of:

- the amount of SFA program funds that the student did not earn; or
- the amount of institutional costs that the student incurred for the payment period or period of enrollment multiplied by the percentage of funds that were not earned.

The student (or parent, if a Federal PLUS loan) must return or repay, as appropriate:

- any SFA loan funds in accordance with the terms of the loan; and
- the remaining unearned SFA program grant (not to exceed 50% of a grant) as an overpayment of the grant.

(Note: The student (parent) must make satisfactory arrangements with the U.S. Department of Education and/or the institution to repay any outstanding balances owed by the student. However, there are a number of repayment plans that are available to assist the student in meeting repayment obligations. The Student Financial Aid Department will counsel the student in the event that a student repayment obligation exists. The individual might be ineligible to receive additional student financial assistance in the future if the financial obligation(s) are not satisfied.)

Remittance to the Federal Government

If it is determined that a federal refund is due, the statute and the regulations clearly define the order in which remaining federal student financial aid program funds are to be returned. Based on the student's financial aid award(s) (or his or her parent(s) in the case of PLUS Loans) the return of federal funds will be remitted to the appropriate program in the following order:

- 1. Unsubsidized Federal Stafford Loan Program;
- 2. Subsidized Stafford Loan Program;
- 3. Unsubsidized Federal Direct Stafford Loan Program;
- 4. Subsidized Federal Direct Stafford Loan Program;
- 5. Federal Perkins Loan Programs;
- 6. Federal PLUS Loan Program;
- 7. Federal Direct PLUS Loan Program;
- 8. Federal Pell Grant Program;
- 9. Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) Program;
- 10. Other federal, state, private and/or institutional sources of aid; and
- 11. The student.

Texas Workforce Commission, Proprietary Schools Section Refund Requirements

In the event the student, after expiration of the 72-hour cancellation privilege, fails to enter the course, withdraws, or is discontinued there from at any time prior to completion, refunds for resident courses will be based on the period of enrollment computed on the basis of course time expressed in clock hours.

The effective date of the termination for refund purposes in residence schools will be the earliest of the following:

- (A) The last date of attendance, if the student is terminated by the School;
- (B) The date of receipt of written notice from the student; or
- (C) 10 school days following the last date of attendance;

If tuition and fees are collected in advance of entrance, and if, after expiration of the 72-hour cancellation privilege, the student does not enter the residence school, not more than \$100 shall be retained by the School. For the student who enters a residence course of not more than 12 months in length, terminates, or withdraws, the School may retain \$100 of tuition and fees and the minimum refund of the remaining tuition and fees will be:

- (A) During the first week or one-tenth of the course, whichever is less, 90 percent of the remaining tuition and fees;
- (B) After the first week or one-tenth of the course, whichever is less, but within the first three weeks or one-fifth of the course, whichever is less, 80 percent of the remaining tuition and fees;
- (C) After the first three weeks or one-fifth of the course, whichever is less, but within the first quarter of the course, 75 percent of the remaining tuition and fees;
- (D) During the second quarter of the course, 50 percent of the remaining tuition and fees;
- (E) During the third quarter of the course, 10 percent of the remaining tuition and fees; or
- (F) During the last quarter of the course, the student may be considered obligated for the full tuition and fees.

For residence courses more than 12 months in length, the refund shall be applied to each 12-month period paid, or part thereof separately as outlined above.

Institutional Refund Calculation

The school will calculate refunds using the Texas Workforce Commission, Proprietary Schools Section Refund Requirements and the following Institutional Refund Calculation and will use the result that provides the most favorable refund to the student.

Under the Institutional Refund Calculation, for students attending this campus who terminate their training before completing more than 60 percent of an enrollment period, the school will perform a pro rata refund calculation.

Under a pro rata refund calculation, the school is entitled to retain only the percentage of school charges (tuition, fees, room, board, etc.) proportional to the period of enrollment completed by the student.

The period of enrollment completed by the student is calculated by dividing the total number of weeks in the enrollment period into the number of weeks completed in that period (as of the last recorded day of attendance by the student).

The percentage of weeks attended is rounded up to the nearest 10 percent and multiplied by the school charges for the period of enrollment. A reasonable administrative fee not to exceed \$100 or 5% of the total institutional charges, whichever is less, will be excluded from the institutional charges used to calculate the pro rata refund.

The school may retain the entire contract price of the period of enrollment - including tuition, fees and other charges - if the student terminates the training after completing more than 60 percent of the enrollment period.

Financial Assistance

This school offers students several options for payment of tuition. Those able to pay tuition are given a plan to help reduce their fees upon entry. On the other hand, the School recognizes that many students lack the resources to begin their educational training. The campus participates in several types of institutional financial aid programs, most of which are based on financial need.

Students seeking financial assistance must first complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid. The School's financial aid representative uses this form to determine students' needs and assist them in deciding what resources are best suited to their circumstances.

If students withdraw from school, an adjustment in the amount they owe may be made, subject to the refund policy of the School. If they received financial aid in excess of what they owe the institution, these funds must be restored to the federal fund account, or to the lender if they received a federal loan.

The following are descriptions of the financial aid programs available at this school. Additional information can be obtained through the Financial Aid Office. Information regarding benefits available from the Bureau of Indian Affairs or the Vocational Rehabilitation Program can be obtained through those agencies.

Federal Pell Grant

The Federal Pell Grant Program is the largest federal student aid program. For many students, these grants provide a foundation of financial assistance that may be supplemented by other resources. Eligibility for the Federal Pell Grant Program is determined by a standard formula that is revised and approved every year by the federal government. Unlike loans, grants do not have to be paid back.

Federal Stafford Loan (FSL)

Formerly the Guaranteed Student Loan (GSL), this low interest loan is available to qualified students through the lending institutions or agencies participating in the program and is guaranteed by the U.S. government. Repayment starts six months after the student drops below half time status, terminates training or graduates.

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (FSEOG)

Students who are unable to continue their education without additional assistance may qualify for this program. Grants are based on the funds available and do not have to be repaid. Need is determined by the financial resources of the student and parents, and the cost of attending the school.

Federal Parent Loan for Undergraduate Students (FPLUS)

The Federal Parent Loan for Undergraduate Students (FPLUS) provides additional funds to help parents pay for educational expenses. The interest rate for these loans is competitive and the repayment schedules differ. Loan origination fees may be deducted from the loan by the institution making the loan as set forth by government regulations.

Sallie Mae Alternative Loan Program (SLM)

SLM Financial provides a customized loan program to qualified applicants that will offer borrowers financing for their educational costs. All applicants must complete a SLM loan application during their financial aid interview.

Student Tuition Assistance Resource Loan (STAR Loan)

Students who do not qualify for the Sallie Mae Alternative Loan Program may be eligible to borrow up to fifty percent of their tuition costs through the STAR Loan program. The STAR Loan is not available for full tuition financing. Students must have a primary source of tuition funding to be eligible for this plan.

Imagine America Scholarships

This institution participates in the Imagine America scholarship program operated by the Career Training Foundation of Washington D.C.

Under this scholarship program two \$1,000 Imagine America scholarships are available at each participating high school and can be awarded to two graduating high school seniors from that school.

Scholarship certificates are sent directly to the high school from the Career Training Foundation of Washington D.C. The high school guidance counselor and the high school principal select the students of their choice to receive the award. Certificates have to be signed by the counselor and principal to be valid. The chosen high school seniors can each only receive one Imagine America scholarship.

Imagine America scholarship certificates are to be given to the Financial Aid Office prior to class commencement, are non-transferable and cannot be exchanged for cash. Scholarship certificates will be accepted until the end of the year in which they are awarded.

STUDENT SERVICES

Placement Assistance

The School assists students in finding part-time or full-time employment while they attend school. Assistance includes advice in preparing for an interview, resume and cover letter preparation assistance, aid in securing an interview and a list of available jobs.

The School encourages students to maintain satisfactory attendance, conduct and academic progress so they may be viewed favorably by prospective employers. While the School cannot guarantee employment, it has been successful in placing the majority of its graduates in their field of training. All graduating students participate in the following placement assistance activities:

- Preparation of resumes and letters of introduction. An important step in a well-planned job search.
- Interviewing techniques. Students acquire effective interviewing skills through practice exercises.
- Job referral by Placement Department. The Placement Department compiles job openings from employers in the area.

All students are expected to participate in the placement assistance program and failure to do so may jeopardize these privileges. Graduates may continue to utilize the School's placement assistance program at no additional cost.

Student Activities

Throughout the school year, activities that encourage school spirit and develop student leadership may be offered. The School believes that participation in these activities is an important part of the educational process. Student involvement is encouraged.

Transportation Assistance

The School maintains information on public transportation and a list of students interested in carpooling.

Field Trips

The School believes that training is enriched by observing real-life applications. When appropriate, visits are arranged to industrial or professional locations.

Special Lectures

Guest lecturers are invited to speak to students about career opportunities and current industry applications of educational programs.

Drug and Alcohol Abuse Prevention

Information on drug and alcohol abuse prevention is available at the School for all students and employees.

Advising

The School provides advising to students on issues involving education and academics. For personal problems that may require professional advising or counseling, the School has information available on community resources that address these types of problem.

SCHEDULES

Hours of Operation

Office:

7:30 AM to 7:00 PM Monday through Thursday 7:30 AM to 5:00 PM Friday

School:

Morning	Afternoon	Evening
8:00 - 8:50	1:00 - 1:50	6:00 - 6:50
9:00 - 9:50	2:00 - 2:50	7:00 - 7:50
10:10 - 11:00	3:10 - 4:00	8:10 - 9:00
11:10 - 12:00	4:10 - 5:00	9:10 - 10:00
12:00 - 12:50*	5:00 - 5:50*	10:00 - 10:50*
Breaks: 8:50 - 9:00 9:50 - 10:10 11:00 - 11:10	Breaks: 1:50 - 2:00 2:50 - 3:10 4:00 - 4:10	Breaks: 6:50 - 7:00 7:50 - 8:10 9:00 - 9:10

Academic Calendars

The following Academic Calendars detail the beginning and end dates of individual terms. To determine the projected end date for a program, count down the number of terms in the program from the projected start date. The projected end date assumes uninterrupted attendance, an average credit load of 16 credits per quarter, and full-time externship hours.

The number of terms for each program is as follows:

Medical Assisting 6 Quarters
 Business Administration 6 Quarters
 Criminal Justice 6 Quarters

2003 CALENDAR					
EVENT					
Winter Term Starts		1	13	2003	
M.L. King Jr. Birthday Holiday		1	20	2003	
Presidents' Day		2	17	2003	
Mini-Term Starts		2	24	2003	
Winter Term Ends			5	2003	
Whiter remit Ends		4	3	2003	
Spring Vacation*	From:	4	7	2003	
	To:	4	12	2003	
Spring Term Starts		4	14	2003	
Good Friday Holiday		4	18	2003	
Memorial Day Holiday		5	26	2003	
Mini-Term Starts		5	27	2003	
Independence Day Holiday		7	4	2003	
Spring Term Ends		7	5	2003	
opining Term Entas		•	Ü	2000	
Summer Vacation	From:	7	7	2003	
	To:	7	12	2003	
Summer Term Starts		7	14	2003	
Mini-Term Starts		8	25	2003	
Labor Day Holiday		9	1	2003	
Summer Term Ends		10	$\overline{4}$	2003	
Fall Break	From:	10	6	2003	
	To:	10	11	2003	
Fall Term Start		10	13	2003	
Mini-Term Starts		11	17	2003	
Thanksgiving Day Holiday	From:	11	27	2003	
-0 0)	To:	11	29	2003	
Christmas Holiday	From:	12	22	2003	
,	To:	1	1	2004	
Classes Resume		1	2	2004	
Fall Term Ends		1	10	2004	

2004 CALENDAR					
EVENT					
Christmas Holidays	From: To:	12 1	22 1	2003 2004	
Classes Resume	10.	1	2	2004	
Fall Term Ends		1	11	2004	
Winter Term Starts		1	12	2004	
M.L. King Jr. Birthday Holiday		1	19	2004	
Presidents' Day		2	16	2004	
Mini-Term Starts		2	23	2004	
Winter Term Ends		4	3	2004	
Spring Vacation	From:	4	5	2004	
	To:	4	10	2004	
Spring Term Starts		4	12	2004	
Memorial Day Holiday		5	31	2004	
Mini-Term Starts		6	1	2004	
Spring Term Ends		7	3	2004	
Independence Day Holiday		7	4	2004	
Summer Vacation	From:	7	5	2004	
	To:	7	10	2004	
Summer Term Starts		7	12	2004	
Mini-Term Starts		8	23	2004	
Labor Day Holiday		9	6	2004	
Summer Term Ends		10	2	2004	
Fall Break	From:	10	4	2004	
	To:	10	9	2004	
Fall Term Start		10	11	2004	
Mini-Term Starts		11	15	2004	
Thanksgiving Day Holiday	From:	11	25	2004	
	To:	11	27	2004	
Christmas Holiday	From:	12	20	2004	
	To:	1	1	2005	
Classes Resume		1	3	2005	
Fall Term Ends		1	8	2005	